# 

## CILEX Level 6 Chartered Legal Executive Apprenticeship End-Point Assessment

**Delivery Guide** 

(Version 1.1 February 2024)

Important Note: This guide applies to Version 1.0 of the Chartered Legal Executive Apprenticeship

### Summary of changes

We have updated Version 1.0 and produced this version (Version 1.1).

Below is a summary of the main changes made.

Summary of changes made between previous version and this current version	Page number
CILEX has made it clear that this guide is also for the apprentice and employer.	Throughout
Information about the Apprenticeship Provider and Assessment Register (APAR) has been added to Role of the Training Provider.	Page 7
Qualifying Employment changed to Qualifying Experience and rules around this updated.	Page 9
Information about all the Gateway documents that need to be uploaded has been made clearer.	Page 10
Information about the format to upload the Portfolio and Case Study has been added to section 4.4.1 .	Page 10
Removal of any reference to OneFile and replaced with EPA system	Throughout
Information about the policies and procedures available has been added.	Page 14
Access to other CILEX documents related to this apprenticeship can be found in the EPA system.	Throughout
Annex replaced with Appendix.	Throughout
Examples of checklists and forms have been removed as these can be found in the EPA system.	Throughout

### Introduction

The Chartered Institute of Legal Executives (CILEX) is the professional association for CILEX Lawyers (Chartered Legal Executives), Paralegals and other legal practitioners in England and Wales, offering unparalleled access to a flexible career in law and recognition alongside solicitors and barristers. We set high professional and ethical standards and drive greater diversity in the profession. Find out more about CILEX on our website www.cilex.org.uk

CILEX is proud to be an End Point Assessment Organisation (EPAO) for the Level 6 Chartered Legal Executive Apprenticeship.

This guide is designed for apprentices, training providers and employers to help them understand what is involved in an apprenticeship and CILEX's role as the End Point Assessment Organisation (EPAO).

This guide should be read in conjunction with the CILEX Chartered Legal Executive Apprenticeship End-Point Assessment – Supplementary Delivery Guidance, available in the EPA system.



### Contents

Section 1	CILEX and Apprenticeships	4	
1.1	CILEX Experience 4		
1.2	CILEX: End-Point Assessment Organisation		
Section 2	What is an Apprenticeship?	5	
2.1	Apprenticeship Standards and EPA Plans	5	
2.2	Apprenticeship Overview	5	
Section 3	Roles and Responsibilities	6	
3.1	Role of the Apprentice	6	
3.2	Role of the Employer	6	
3.3	Role of the Training Provider6		
Section 4	The CLE Apprenticeship End-Point Assessment 8		
4.1	EPA Assessment Overview	8	
4.2	On-Programme Requirements	8	
4.3	Qualifying Experience	8	
4.4	EPA Gateway	8	
4.4.1	Gateway Documents	9	
4.5	Overview of the EPA Period	9	
4.6	Portfolio	10	
4.7	Case Study	10	
4.8	Grading	11	
4.9	Re-sits and Re-takes	11	
4.10	The Apprenticeship Certificate	12	
4.11	Chartered Legal Executive Status	12	
Section 5	EPA Administration: Registration and Delivery	13	
5.1	EPA Agreement	13	
5.2	EPA System	13	
5.3	Registering Apprentices with CILEX for End-Point Assessment	13	
5.4	Uploading Gateway Documentation	13	
5.5	EPA Results 13		
Section 6	EPA Policies and Procedures	14	
6.1	Reasonable Adjustments	14	
6.2	Enquiries about Results	14	
6.3	Appeals	14	
6.4	Malpractice and Maladministration	14	
Section 7	Supporting You	15	
7.1	Information and Guidance	15	
7.2	CILEX Contact Details 15		
Appendix 1	Types of Portfolio Evidence	16	
Appendix 2	Structure of the Case Study	18	
Appendix 3	Case Study Checklist	20	



### **1** CILEX and Apprenticeships

#### 1.1 CILEX Experience

CILEX has extensive experience of apprenticeship development, delivery and assessment; we have been delivering apprenticeships since 2013.

The legal apprenticeships have been widening access to the profession since their introduction and the apprenticeship levy continues to encourage employers to consider apprenticeships as a way of addressing the skills gaps in their organisations.

#### 1.2 CILEX: End-Point Assessment Organisation (EPAO)

CILEX is an approved End-Point Assessment Organisation (EPAO) with a wealth of experience of EPA delivery.

As an EPAO, CILEX is responsible for:

- the provision of information and guidance to enable apprentices, employers and training providers to prepare for EPA
- the effective delivery of EPA in accordance with the EPA plan.
- the independent assessment of each apprentice.
- Requesting the apprenticeship completion certificates on behalf of the apprentice and their employer from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).



### 2 What is an Apprenticeship?

#### 2.1 Apprenticeship Standards and EPA Plans

An EPA Plan is published for each apprenticeship standard. This guide is for Version 1.0 of the Chartered Legal Executive EPA Plan. The EPA Plan explains the requirements for the EPA that End-Point Assessment Organisations must follow, the grading criteria for each EPA assessment component and the overall EPA grading.

An apprenticeship is a job that combines practical training in the workplace along with study. Apprentices are employed to do a real job while being released for a specified number of hours per week to study.

Apprenticeship Standards and EPA Plans are available on the IfATE website: <u>Home / Institute for</u> <u>Apprenticeships and Technical Education</u>

#### 2.2 Apprenticeship Overview

Apprenticeships require a relationship between the apprentice, employer, training provider and EPAO, as follows:

Apprentice is offered an apprenticeship by an employer

Employer selects an approved apprenticeship training provider Training provider (in consultation with employer) selects an EPAO to assess the apprentice

Further information about starting an apprenticeship is available on the government's website: <u>Apprenticeships</u>



### **3** Roles and Responsibilities

#### **3.1** Role of the Apprentice

An apprentice must complete the on-programme training to meet required amount of off-the-job training specified in the <u>apprenticeship funding rules</u>. Off-the-job training is arranged by the apprentice's employer and training provider.

Apprentices must take the EPA as specified in the EPA Plan and comply with the rules and regulations governing the EPA.

#### 3.2 Role of the Employer

Employers should ensure that apprentices have a positive apprenticeship experience. Employers should be familiar with the apprenticeship funding rules.

Employers are responsible for:

- ensuring that the apprentices' work meets the requirements for Qualifying Experience
- arranging and supporting off-the-job training, and selecting the training provider and the EPAO
- deciding when an apprentice is working at or above the occupational standard and is ready for the EPA
- assisting the apprentice with the preparation of their portfolio and case study
- ensuring that the supporting evidence required at gateway is submitted, as required by CILEX, providing access to any employer-specific documentation as required.
- countersigning the portfolio and ensuring that every outcome has been met
- submitting a *Supervisory Endorsement form* for the Case Study and ensuring every outcome has been met
- signing the Gateway Declaration form.

In accordance with the apprenticeship funding rules, employers must select the EPAO to deliver the EPA **at least six months** before an apprentice reaches gateway.

CILEX requests that employers ensure that training providers register apprentices with CILEX **a minimum of six months** before an apprentice reaches gateway, to enable planning for EPA to take place in a timely fashion.

#### 3.3 Role of the Training Provider

Training providers must be on the Apprenticeship Provider and Assessment Register (APAR), before they can offer this EPA (<u>Download the apprenticeship provider and assessment register (APAR)</u> (<u>education.gov.uk</u>)).

Training providers must be fully conversant with the Chartered Legal Executive Apprenticeship Standard, EPA Plan and apprenticeship funding rules.

Training providers work with employers to support apprentices during the off-the-job training.



Training providers deliver training as agreed as part of apprentices' learning plans and monitor apprentices' progress. Training providers may provide guidance to employers regarding an apprentice's readiness for the EPA.

CILEX requires that training providers register apprentices with CILEX for EPA, a minimum of six months before an apprentice reaches the gateway.

CILEX requires training providers to maintain accurate apprentice data on the EPA system, including apprentice gateway dates. Training providers upload the gateway documentation for their apprentices onto the EPA system, or grant their apprentice permission to upload their gateway documentation.



### 4 CLE Apprenticeship End-Point Assessment

#### 4.1 The EPA Assessment Overview

The EPA is comprised of **two** parts – Portfolio and Case Study. The apprentice must pass both parts to pass the EPA.

Further information on each part can be found in sections 4.6 and 4.7 on page 10.

#### 4.2 On-Programme Requirements

During the apprenticeship, the apprentice must achieve the following requirements:

- CILEX Level 3 Professional Diploma in Law and Practice
- CILEX Level 6 Professional Higher Diploma in Law and Practice
- served at least 1 year in the CILEX Member-Advanced Paralegal grade of membership.

Apprentices may be eligible for exemptions if they hold other relevant qualifications such as a law degree – contact us applications for exemptions must be submitted in the usual. Further information on exemptions can be found <u>here</u>.

#### 4.3 Qualifying Experience

Qualifying experience (QE) is the legal experience that helps an apprentice develop their competence to meet the entry requirements to become a Chartered Legal Executive. Gaining appropriate varied legal experience is vital in developing the apprentice's knowledge and skills to enable them to present examples of their own work as part of their end point assessment.

To meet the qualifying experience requirements, the apprentice needs to show that they have undertaken 'work that contributes to the provision of legal services' for at least 2,300 hours and have served at least 1 year in the CILEX Member-Advanced Paralegal grade of membership.

The employer will need to complete an *Employer Declaration form*, and this will need to be uploaded as part of Gateway. See Section 4.4 for information about Gateway.

Apprentices can submit work for the EPA no earlier than 19 weeks prior to the end of their QE, however their results will not be released until the QE requirement has been fulfilled.

#### 4.4 EPA Gateway

Gateway takes place before the EPA can start. The employer must confirm that they consider their apprentice is working at or above the occupational standard before the apprentice can enter gateway for their EPA. The employer may take advice from the apprentice's training provider but the employer must make the decision. By signing the Gateway Declaration Form, the training provider and the employer are confirming that the apprentice is ready for their EPA – they are satisfied the apprentice is consistently working at, or above, the level of the standard.



The apprentice must have served at least 1 year in the CILEX Member-Advanced Paralegal grade of membership, therefore they can submit 19 weeks before reaching 1 year in the CILEX Member-Advanced Paralegal grade of membership.

If an apprentice submits earlier than this, then the earliest we can issue their result will be when they have reached their 1 year in membership anniversary.

If submitting early then we recommend that this no more than one month. If an apprentice submits more than one month early, CILEX reserve the right to put the gateway confirmation on hold or reject gateway.

#### 4.4.1 Gateway Documents

When the apprentice is ready to enter gateway, the following must be uploaded to the EPA system. A copy of the CILEX forms and checklists can be found in EPA system.

- Evidence of achieving a Level 2 English and Maths qualification, in line with the apprenticeship funding rules.
- Gateway Declaration Form signed by the apprentice, employer and the training provider\*.
- Employer Declaration Form signed by the employer\*.
- Supervisor Endorsement Form signed by the apprentice and employer.
- Portfolio (included the WBL Logbook Sheets available on the CILEx Regulations website).
- Portfolio Evidence Outcome Checklist.
- Case study.
- Case study Evidence Outcome Checklist.

\* The signatory professional person membership number must be included on the form.

#### Information about the Case Study and Portfolio

1) Please upload the Portfolio as one document (one file) with the narrative either included in the same document or as a separate document.

2) Please upload the Case study as one document (one file) with the narrative either included in the same document or as a separate document.

3) Please make sure all confidential information is **fully redacted**. It is the apprentice's responsibility to ensure client or organisation's confidential information is not shared.

CILEX will review the gateway evidence to determine if the apprentice has met the gateway requirements. CILEX will confirm this via the EPA system. An apprentice will **not** be able to progress through gateway if insufficient, incomplete or inaccurate gateway evidence is submitted. The EPA period starts once CILEX has signed off the apprentice as meeting the gateway requirements.

#### 4.5 Overview of the EPA Period

The EPA period starts when CILEX confirms that the apprentice has met the gateway requirements. The EPA system will confirm the results release date (16 weeks from the date the apprentice has met the gateway requirements). However the EPA system cannot take into account whether the apprentice has met their 1 year in the CILEX Member-Advanced Paralegal grade of membership anniversary date.



If the 1 year anniversary date is after the results release date issued via the EPA system, CILEX will notify the training provider the new result release date.

#### 4.6 Portfolio

To meet the required standard for the Portfolio, the apprentice is required to meet eight competencies, which are broken down into 27 outcomes. It is strongly recommended that you consult the guidance produced by CILEx Regulation on <u>their website</u> and in particular the very informative WBL <u>Week-by-Week</u> Schedule webpage to provide correct guidance to the apprentice when completing this work.

The training provider and/or employer should work with the apprentice to discuss each of the outcomes, to consider when the apprentice is able to demonstrate that they can meet the outcomes and to determine what documentary evidence can be used to meet the outcomes.

The evidence relied on in the Portfolio can be dated up to two years before submission. A *Portfolio Outcome Evidence* Checklist should be completed and submitted with the Portfolio. The checklist will help to ensure that evidence has been provided for each outcome and it will help facilitate the marking of the Portfolio. A copy of this checklist is available in the EPA system.

The Apprentice must provide **two** examples of meeting each of the 27 outcomes (except for outcomes 4.2, 4.3, 5.1, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1 and 7.2 which only need to be met once). It is important to note that the apprentice should provide two different examples of meeting an outcome, rather than providing two examples of the same type. For example, the apprentice should not provide two examples of applying the same piece of law for outcome 1.1, otherwise different examples may be requested.

Each of the examples used must be set out in a logsheet with supporting evidence – there should be 47 logsheets in the Portfolio when it is uploaded to the EPA system. The logsheet should fully explain how the outcome has been met and how the evidence shows that the apprentice has met the outcome. The evidence provided should support the logbook sheet.

The logbook sheet template is available on the CILEx Regulation website, here.

Further guidance as to what supporting evidence can be used for the portfolio has been provided in *Appendix A*.

#### 4.7 Case Study

Whilst the Portfolio focuses on evidencing the requirements which CILEx Regulation has identified as necessary for admission as a Chartered Legal Executive, the Case Study identifies learning outcomes that reflect skills and knowledge which are relevant to most legal work.

The Case Study requires the apprentice to provide in-depth evidence to demonstrate how they have met the learning outcomes covering three domains:

- Legal advice and communications
- Personal approach
- Business administration.

As the name suggests, the evidence should show involvement throughout one case or matter – the apprentice may also use a case/matter that they have referred to in the Portfolio. In order to be a valid case study, the case or matter must:

• have taken place within the 12 months prior to Gateway



• not start to be compiled more than six months prior to Gateway, ie has been worked on within six months prior to Gateway.

The case/matter should enable the apprentice to evidence how the Case Study outcomes have been met. For example, it may have been a case where the work was consistently of a particularly high standard or where the apprentice was given responsibilities expected of a newly qualified Chartered Legal Executive. Outcomes only need to be evidenced once – no extra credit will be given if outcomes are evidenced multiple times however the apprentice will not be penalised.

A *Case Study Outcome Evidence* Checklist should be completed and submitted with the Case Study. The checklist will help to ensure that evidence has been provided for each outcome and it will help facilitate the marking of the Case Study. A copy of this checklist is available in the EPA system.

It is recommended that where possible each Case Study follows the format set out in Appendix 2.

If there are a few cases which might be suitable as a Case Study we recommend these are mapped against the assessment requirements and discussed with all parties to ensure the strongest Case Study is selected. If there are no valid cases from the apprentice's workload – then a simulated Case Study may be used.

Please follow the information in the *Simulated Case Study Approval Process Guide* and submit a *Simulated Case Study Application form* to CILEX. These are available in the EPA system.

The case study must be endorsed by the apprentice's supervisor. The supervisor will need to complete the *Employer Supervisor Endorsement form*, and this must be submitted at Gateway along with other documents. See Section 4.4 for information about Gateway.

Further guidance as to what evidence can be used for the Case Study has been provided in Appendix 3.

#### 4.8 Grading

The Portfolio and Case Study are graded Pass/Fail. The apprentice must pass both to achieve the EPA.

#### 4.9 Re-sits and Re-takes

If an apprentice does not pass either the Portfolio and/or the Case Study, CILEX will inform the training provider which outcomes they have not met.

The training provider should discuss the feedback given with the apprentice so they understand how to address the issues raised.

The apprentice must ensure any changes made are clearly highlighted and the file name reflects the new version. Training providers should review any amendments before the apprentice is ready to upload their Portfolio and/or Case Study to the EPA system.

If the apprentice does not pass their Portfolio and/or the Case Study due to their role being too narrow, they will need to discuss this with their employer and training provider. The discussions should look at the options available for the apprentice to be given the opportunity to broaden their role so they can demonstrate the requirements of the assessment outcomes. The apprentice may need to re-enter Gateway once they are in a position to submit the necessary evidence.



#### 4.10 The Apprenticeship Certificate

The apprenticeship certificate is the formal recognition that an apprentice has achieved their apprenticeship. CILEX will claim the apprenticeship certificates from the ESFA for all apprentices who successfully complete the EPA.

#### 4.11 Chartered Legal Executive Status

Once the apprentice has successfully completed the CLE EPA with CILEX, received their certificate from the ESFA, they can apply to CILEx Regulations for Chartered Legal Executive status.

Information about this, can be found here: <u>https://cilexregulation.org.uk/become-a-chartered-legal-executive-via-apprenticeship/</u>.



### 5 EPA Administration: Registration and Delivery

#### 5.1 EPA Agreement

Training providers are required to sign up to the CILEX End-Point Assessment Agreement. Training providers that have an agreement with CILEX will be given access to the EPA system.

#### 5.2 EPA System

CILEX uses epaPRO (the 'EPA system') to support its delivery of EPA. All training providers with a valid EPA agreement with CILEX are given access to the EPA System. Training providers will be able to access all EPA documentation, including EPA materials, checklists, policies and procedures in the EPA system. The system will be used by training providers for a range of activities, including registering apprentices, maintaining up to date apprentice information, uploading EPA documents and accessing EPA results.

Training providers manage access to the EPA system for their staff, apprentices and their employers. It is strongly recommended that training providers give apprentices and their employers access to the system. It is for training providers to decide whether apprentices are permitted to upload documentation for gateway.

#### 5.3 Registering Apprentices with CILEX for End-Point Assessment

Training providers are required to register apprentices with CILEX, via the EPA system, a **minimum of six months before** the apprentice reaches gateway. At the point of registration, training providers are required to confirm the provisional gateway date for each apprentice. CILEX uses this data to forecast demand for EPA and ensure that sufficient CILEX assessors are available to conduct the EPA.

#### 5.4 Uploading Gateway Documentation

Training providers will normally upload the gateway documentation for each apprentice. Training providers can permit the apprentices to upload the gateway documentation, however this is not recommended by CILEX.

CILEX reviews the evidence submitted to confirm whether the apprentice meets the gateway requirements.

Apprentices will not be able to progress through gateway and take the EPA if insufficient, incomplete or inaccurate gateway evidence is submitted. Training providers will be advised if an apprentice has not met the gateway requirements. The training provider should consult the employer and apprentice to remedy the issues identified by CILEX.

#### 5.5 EPA Results

EPA results are issued via the EPA system.



### 6 EPA Policies and Procedures

#### 6.1 Reasonable Adjustments

CILEX recognises that reasonable adjustments allow apprentices to show what they know and can do without changing the validity or demands of the assessment. Reasonable adjustments are offered within the scope of the Equality Act 2010. The Act requires organisations to make reasonable adjustments where a person with a disability would be at a substantial disadvantage in undertaking an assessment.

The CILEX Reasonable Adjustments Policy and CILEX Reasonable Adjustments Procedures – End-Point Assessment are available in the EPA system.

#### 6.2 Enquiries about Results

CILEX has in place a wide range of checks and quality assurance procedures to ensure that apprentices receive a result that accurately reflects their performance in the assessment.

However, if an apprentice and their employer do not consider their EPA results to be an accurate reflection of their performance in the assessment, results enquiry can be requested in accordance with the EPA Enquiries about Results Policy and associated Procedure. The policy and procedure are available in the EPA system.

#### 6.3 Appeals

An appeal is a formal request for the review of a decision. An appeal considers whether CILEX followed the correct policies and procedures and applied these policies and procedures fairly.

The EPA Appeals Policy and associated Procedure are available in the EPA system.

#### 6.4 Malpractice and Maladministration

The EPA Malpractice and Maladministration Policy and associated Procedure are available in the EPA system along with the Sanctions Policy.



### 7 Supporting You

#### 7.1 Information and Guidance

All training providers contracted with CILEX for EPA services are given access to the EPA system. This allows training providers to register and manage their apprentices with CILEX.

Training providers are strongly encouraged to give apprentices and their employers access to the EPA system too.

A range of information and guidance can be accessed in the EPA system.

CILEX will provide ongoing support and guidance for training providers and employers who have registered apprentices for CILEX EPA.

#### 7.2 CILEX Contact Details

CILEX contact details are as follows:

Telephone: 01234 841000 Email: <u>paralegalepa@cilex.org.uk</u>



### **Appendix 1 – Types of Portfolio Evidence**

#### What supporting evidence can the apprentice use?

- The apprentice should collect evidence from their work to demonstrate meeting the outcomes.
- Evidence can come from a variety of sources, including: evidence taken from their workload.
- Internal file notes or notes prepared for the apprentice own purpose are not acceptable as evidence. Examples of acceptable evidence would be scanned copies of correspondence, telephone attendance notes, client attendance notes, statements of cases, case evaluation studies, and documents/reports they have prepared.
- The evidence must be uploaded originals of their work from their file and not copied (cut and pasted) from other documents.
- Copies of their firm's policies, or codes of practice, or blank/template forms and letters, or statutes (except for outcome 1.4) are not acceptable, as these do not evidence how they have met the outcome.
- The evidence must **not** be older than two years prior to the date that the apprentice will be going through Gateway.
- The evidence that the apprentice provide must be their work. They must leave in the date, their name and reference where this appears within the evidence. If the evidence does not contain this information they should provide an explanation in the logbook sheet.
- They must redact from the evidence all personal information that would identify their client or any third party in order to comply with Data Protection obligations. Other non-identifying information should be left in to assist the CILEX assessor.
- The apprentice may use the same piece of evidence to demonstrate meeting more than one outcome within their Portfolio. For example, the evidence you submit for outcome 1.1. could be used to demonstrate meeting outcome(s) 2.1, 2.5 and 3.3, where it also demonstrates meeting these other outcome(s).
- However, where an outcome requires two examples, the apprentice must use **two** different pieces of evidence ideally from different matters.



#### When can the apprentice use a personal statement?

- Where possible the apprentice should provide a logbook sheet with evidence. Where they do not have evidence on which to rely they must complete and submit a CILEx Regulations Personal Statement, the template available <u>here</u>.
- The apprentice must provide an explanation as to why they are unable to provide evidence from their file. For example, it was a verbal conversation or they no longer have access to the file.
- The apprentice must fully explain how they have met the outcome, using a real, specific example from their workload, but without providing the evidence.
- The apprentice and their employer must sign and date the personal statement to confirm that the example provided is their work.
- The apprentice may use a maximum of five personal statements in total in the Portfolio and no more than one per outcome.
- The decision to accept the personal statement is at the discretion of CILEX.



### **Appendix 2 – Structure of the Case Study**

The Case Study should have two sections supported by the Supervisor's Endorsement.

#### Summary

The summary should set out the context for the case or matter (i.e. what the case was about, who was/is involved, what is/was the time-frame, what happened in the case, what was your role/level of supervision). It is recommended that this section should be approximately 300 – 400 words. This should be a summary of the apprentice's involvement in the case and not simply the Apprentice's initial instructions.

#### Narrative

A narrative referencing evidence to show that the outcomes have been met in relation to:

- Legal advice and communications
- Personal Approach
- Business administration

This section should be approximately 900 - 1500 words and evidence how each of the outcomes has been met. The narrative should be in chronological order and enable the CILEX assessor to understand how the case/matter progressed and the apprentice's involvement. They should aim to stay within the word limit – the word limit is indicative of the level of detail required although the apprentice will not be penalised for exceeding the work count.

The apprentice should clearly indicate how the narrative relates to each outcome and refer to supporting evidence. This could be by setting this out in brackets at the end of the relevant paragraph:

"I drafted a summary of the legal issues for the relevant form and the reason for taking this course of action." (**Communication skills and literacy**, Use accurate and suitable language in communication (written) - Evidence X at page Y).

The apprentice should indicate clearly where the relevant evidence for a specific outcome can be found.

Use the further explanations on the outcomes provided above to identify the evidence that will need to be produced e.g. for Communication Skills and Literacy, you will need to evidence:

- Use of accurate and suitable language in communication both written and oral.
- Represent and advise a client through effective communication, including negotiation and advocacy, where applicable and permitted.

It is important that each element of the outcomes is evidenced. There may be multiple examples for some of the outcomes within the case/matter and these can be included if all outcomes are covered, and it remains within the overall word count. The word count is indicative of the level of detail required. Multiple examples for the same outcome (as is the case with the Portfolio), are not needed. It should be clear from the response, what happened in the case and the level of involvement.



#### **Employer Supervisor Endorsement**

The apprentice's supervisor will be asked to:

- agree with the authenticity of the Case Study
- comment on (a) the apprentice's ability to work under pressure and adapt to change and (b) approach to work and ability to take responsibility for their own actions.

The Employer Supervisor Endorsement form is available in the EPA system.



### **Appendix 3 – Case Study Checklist**

To provide further guidance on what is meant by each of the outcomes, CILEX has produced the table below to provide additional structure and highlight the supporting evidence the apprentice could provide in support of the Case Study.

Outcome	Evidence required	Further guidance	Suggested supporting documents			
Legal advice and	Legal advice and communications					
Technical	Has a broad base of legal knowledge to draw on, and a detailed understanding of the law, practice and procedures of own specialist area of practice	This is assessing your technical legal expertise in your specialist area of law. It is an opportunity to show how you can apply your technical knowledge in practice to the benefit of your client.	E.g. advice to client, research note for a supervisor, file note.			
Communication Skills and Literacy	Use accurate and suitable language in communication – written and oral. Represent and advise a client through effective communication, including negotiation and advocacy (negotiation or advocacy), where applicable and permitted.	This is assessing your ability to communicate with your client, and on behalf of your client to third parties. It could include communications with other lawyers, representing clients orally by putting their case across to someone else or writing to clients and third parties. It may include instances where the final correspondence was sent out in the name of someone more senior. Describe what actions were taken and any outcomes.	E.g. letters/emails which you drafted or contributed to, file/attendance note of a meeting which you participated in			
Drafting and accuracy	Ability to draft and present legal documentation which is accurate and appropriate.	This is assessing your ability to write more formal documentation e.g. for a court or the transfer of a property. You may have drafted all or part of the document. Where standard forms or templates are used, you should clearly demonstrate your contribution and that you have understood the relevant documentation. Mention could be made of how drafting was	E.g. court document, property transfer documents, registration of charges			



Outcome	Evidence required	Further guidance	Suggested supporting documents
		adapted to reflect the client's case.	
Numeracy	Ability to read and understand numbers used in different ways, interpret results and present findings accurately.	This is assessing your fluency with numbers. It may relate to fee estimates, billing targets, chargeable hours, calculating charges payable to third parties, estimating quantum or interest	E.g. fee estimate and how it was arrived at
		payments, understanding company accounts.	
IT	Use available technology to suit different purposes, and achieve the quality of outcomes required, and to store, retrieve and analyse information.	This is assessing your awareness of, and interest in, technology that enables you to provide a better level of service for your client. For example, it may relate to online research or software which your Employer is using.	E.g. a research note where online resources have been used or results of an official online calculator such as those provided by HMRC
Personal Approa	ach	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·
Adaptability & Resilience	Ability to work under pressure and willingness to accept changing priorities and work patterns when new jobs need to be done, or requirements change.	This could include describing how the matter fits with other matters in the Apprentices workload, the priority of the case in relation to other cases, issues arising that meant the Apprentice must seek advice from a more experienced colleague	E.g. an email to or from a colleague, appraisal/review/1:1 documentation
Motivation & Enthusiasm	Demonstrate a positive and proactive approach to work. Take responsibility for own actions.	This could include an example when you proactively offered to carry out a task or when you took responsibility for planning and organising your own workload.	E.g. an email to or from a colleague, appraisal/review/1:1 documentation
Honesty & Integrity	Understand when work is beyond own capability; openly admits mistakes/difficulties and seeks guidance and support as appropriate.	This requires you to demonstrate an ability to thoughtfully reflect on your own work and behaviour, identify your limitations and areas of knowledge or skills which you could improve and formulate a plan to make this happen.	E.g. reflective log, appraisal/1:1 documentation
Business admini	istration	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Data & File management	Understand, implement and maintain filing and recording systems and procedures.	Explaining your role and responsibilities in relation to data and file management e.g.	E.g. file reviews, file checklist, file note of process



Outcome	Evidence required	Further guidance	Suggested supporting documents
		version control	
Finance	Understand the basic financial methods and drivers of one's own organisation	This could include explaining your understanding of how the case was billed or an awareness of whether the case was cost effective from a business perspective. For in- house Apprentices it could include an awareness of the financial implications of outsourcing legal advice to external providers	E.g. calculations on which a fee estimate were based
Risk and compliance	Is compliant with legal organisational and regulatory policies and procedures. Understands the risks	This could involve evidencing your understanding of regulatory rules as they relate to financial services, money laundering or handling client complaints e.g. what you must not advise on, as positive requirements. It could also include evidencing your understanding of GDPR as it relates to your work. You should specifically refer to the relevant Code, regulation or legislation.	E.g. completed money laundering or client ID checks
Business and Ethics in law	Understand the ethical issues and obligations applying to the provision of legal services, including the CILEx Regulation Code of Conduct requirements, other rules and regulatory requirements and how to act inclusively and respect diversity.	It is often the case that no issues of conduct or discrimination occur in a case, however you should show the CILEX assessor that you are aware of issues that could arise in a case or matter of this sort e.g. client checks for money laundering, conflict of interest checks, undertakings. You should specifically refer to the relevant Code, regulation or legislation.	E.g. checks and enquiries made, notes of discussions with Supervisor